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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to immunity from civil liability for liquefied petroleum gas dealers; and provide
for application

Minutes:

Vice Chairman Kasper, Co-Sponsor, District 46: Introduces HB 1419. Last session we
had a bill that dealt with this very issue. There were a lot of concerns about the liability that
the liquid petroleum gas dealers face based upon what individual citizens do once they put
their product on the property of individual citizens. We had a bill that was defeated. This
time the bill does have some modifications from last session.

Chairman Keiser: Those in support of HB1418:

Mike Rud~Executive Director of the North Dakota Propane Gas Association: (see
attached testimony #1).

There is a housekeeping amendment | would propose. On line 19 the word “vesting”
should be “venting.”

Chairman Keiser: How do we determine who did what to the system?
Mike Rud: We are trying to promote responsibility.

Chairman Keiser: If there was an explosion, how do we know whether it was the owner or
the dealer who caused the malfunction?

Mike Rud: Our marketers go to great lengths to document what they have done on a site
and our people are certified. We would base it off of the information we got from the fire
marshal and the insurance agent as we move forward to determine who is responsible.
What we are asking is if our guys have done the work properly, that we are not drug into it if
somebody modifies or alters.

Representative Nathe: When your marketers install, do they have paperwork that they go
through with the customer?
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Mike Rud: | will let the marketers answer that.

Ken Astrup~General Manager of the Dakota Plains Cooperative in Valley City: (see
attached testimony #2).

Representative Nathe: Does your company have a procedure or a check list.

Ken Astrup: Yes we do. After the installation they sit down and go over with the
homeowner or farmer what we did. We annually send them a duty-to-warn letter that
explains the responsibilities.

Chairman Keiser: You do the inspection before you take on the customer and the system
is appropriate. If you see something that goes wrong, then | assume you stop doing
service until there is a correction. You fill up the tank and a week later there is an
explosion. How do we determine who is at fault if we pass this?

Ken Astrup: We retain records that show what we did at the time of the installation. We
would rely heavily on the fire marshal and insurance adjusters.

Representative Nathe: Has there been a lot of claims to this effect?

Ken Astrup: Not many. But every time there is a claim, it gets to be very expensive.
There is an attorney in lowa that specializes in these claims. In North Dakota the number
of claims has been minimal.

Ken Kornkuen, Manager of Farmers Union Qil in Portland, ND: We are a locally
owned cooperative. Propane is a good part of our business. Our employees are highly
trained. We have a duty-to-warn. We give every new customer a folder with a check list of
all their equipment. We write down the model number and manufacturer of every piece of
equipment run by propane. We go through this with the customer. We do a duty-to-warn
mailing every year. We do everything we can to make what we do safe. What keeps me
up at night are the things that I've seen that we don’t have any control over. For example,
| had a family that came up to our station with a 100 pound cylinder to fill it but they had a
car. It had to be hauled upright. So | put it in my pickup, strapped it in, and hauled it, no
charge. As | was backing up in the yard to where it goes, there was no stand or regulator.
Only a piece of copper coming out of the house. The table in the kitchen had a hanging
heater with no chimney. They were going to hook that to it to heat their house. | gave their
money back, took my cylinder and left. If they would have come with a pickup, we could
have done everything right, they could have all died. Either carbon monoxide, fire or an
explosion would have got them. We would be responsible because we filled that cylinder.
We are asking that in incidences like that, it is very hard to prove. We are asking for some
relief.

Paul Mutch, Mutch Oil Co., Larimore: | stand in support of HB 1419 for a Do Pass.
Relating to Ken, we had a customer about 15 years ago that needed temporary heat in his
home. The power was out and he brought a 100 pound cylinder in the basement of his
house and left a torch unattended. It depleted all the oxygen. He went back down after
there was no heat, lit a match, and boom!. We are down to about two insurance
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businesses that will insure us. It's low frequency, high impact. | don’t know anything about
electricity. If | harm myself because of my lack of knowledge, | shouldn't be able to sue the
electrician.

Representative N Johnson: The annual of duty-to-warn. Is that something you do as a
business? Or do you keep track when somebody has a system installed and go from a
year of that installation?

Paul Mutch: When we get a new customer, they get the packet of information and then
they are put into our system. On an annual basis we send out a letter and safety brochure.

Representative Boe: How much do you see the price of propane dropping because of the
passage of this bill?

Paul Mutch: | will defer that question to somebody eise.

Steve Becher~Executive Director of the Professional Insurance Agents of North
Dakota: (see attached testimony #3).

Representative Amerman: Section 2 says it applies only to “fixed liquefied petroleum gas
fuel systems” and goes on to explain what that is. Will you explain that to me?

Steve Becher: The propane dealers could speak more to the technical part of the system.
My understanding is we are talking fixed fuel systems for commercial buildings, homes.
That is not the gas grill or grain dryers.

Representative Nathe: Insurance for the gas premiums, do they increase from year to
year?

Steve Becher: A propane dealer told me that in the last ten years their premiums on LPG
have increased three or four times.

Chairman Keiser: Are those run through surplus lines or PNC?
Steve Becher: Those are all standard markets not surplus lines.

Evan Mandigo~State Executive for North Dakota Association of Independent
Insurance Agents: (see attached testimony #4).

Vice Chairman Kasper: What would the dealers say to an amendment that said “in order
to maintain your immunity the dealer must inspect the premises at least once a year and
show proof of inspection and maintain a record.” Is that a reasonable request or do they do
it anyway?

Ken Astrup: How do we force that homeowner to allow us inside his house to do the
inspection?



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee
HB 1419

January 25, 2011

Page 4

Vice Chairman Kasper: If you show up and inspect the outside and ask to go into the
inside, and you are refused, | would say that your immunity would continue. But if you don’t
go in, you would have to keep a record. Would that work?

Ken Astrup: It would work as long as you could get that homeowner to certify that we tried
and they refused to allow us.

Vice Chairman Kasper: They may not even certify. They may refuse to let you in but at
least you could put in your remarks, “I attempted to enter the home and the homeowner
refused.”

Ken Astrup: That would be better than what we have now.
Representative Boe: Who has burden of proof that it was modified?

Evan Mandigo: | would think the burden of proof would rest with the homeowner that they
did not modify the system. I'll caveat that with me not being an attorney.

Steve Becher: The burden of proof is going to be on the ones saying we are immune. It
will not be cut and dried. When it is determined that the propane dealer didn't do anything,
the direct cause of loss was the modification they are out of it. But it has to be direct cause
of loss. It can't be just a contributing factor.

Chris Friez~Crowley Fleck Law Firm on behalf of the North Dakota Grain Dealers
Association: (see attached testimony #5).

Chairman Keiser: Anyone else here in support or in opposition of HB 1419,
Opposition:

Allen Austad, ND Assn. for Justice: Our members are trial lawyers that work throughout
the state of North Dakota. Providing testimony for our organization is Rod Pagel.

Rodney Pagel~Attorney from Bismarck: (see attached testimony #6).

Mr Mandigo commented that this bill is about not being responsible for your own actions.
To me that is the opposite. Right now that is what our current system is. Our current
system is that you are responsible for your own actions.

Nobody in support of this bill has said “In June of 2008 | was sued for this irresponsible and
frivolous lawsuit and because of that | had to pay damages or attorney’s fees. Why are we
putting in an immunity statute when we don’t have a problem?

If we are holding LP gas dealers immune, any time there's an alteration by a homeowner to
a system, shouldn’t the vise verse of that apply if there hasn't been an alteration?
Shouldn’t the LP dealer be strictly liable for that? Let's leave the system as it is.
Everybody is responsible for their own actions. The burden of proof is on me and my
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clients to establish that there is a claim. Any time there is a claim brought, | have a duty to
evaluate that claim.

A person buying a house has no idea if the gas line is hooked up properly. Now because
there is an alteration to the system | have no right to bring a claim against anybody.

Representative Frantsvog: One of the first things a financial institution will do is get a
home inspection when purchasing a home. Do those inspections include gas?

Rodney Pagel: Yes, they will say in some capacity but the homeowner doesn't have to
change that.

Vice Chairman Kasper: Let's say a client calls you and they've had an explosion. They
tell you they are 100% at fault but | want to sue these guys anyway to get money from
them. What does your code of ethics require you to do?

Rodney Pagel: My code of ethics would require me to not bring that claim. The minute
that client lies under oath, | have an obligation to advise court and counsel that my client
has just lied under oath.

Representative Kreun: Even though they knew of the alteration and possible problem in
your testimony but in the bill it says done without knowledge. If they assume knowiedge of
it, then they become responsible. It seems to me they are opposite.

Rodney Pagel: Under my reading of the bill, if there is an alteration of the system and |
don’t notify the LP dealer then they have immunity. My concern about knowledge is that if |
have a purchaser who doesn’t know about that but the first person who made the alteration
didn’'t notify them then the LP dealer still has immunity. The purchaser who didn’t know
about it didn't know that alteration was causing a problem. | don’t have that right to bring a
claim.

Representative Kreun: | don't think that is the way it is addressed. It says “without
knowledge.” When they come and replace the cylinder and they gain knowledge of some
default, if the homeowner doesn’t notify them they would not have the ability to make that
determination. If they don't go out and fill it they would not have the knowledge either. As
soon as they make that determination and knowledge, they have the responsibility to make
the notification. it doesn'’t alleviate them just because they didn't get notified.

Rodney Pagel: As | read the bill, if the alteration modification repair was done without the
knowledge or consent of the LP gas dealer, then immunity applies. If the injury is caused
by the alteration without the LP dealer's knowledge, they have immunity.

Representative Nathe: As far as second or third homeowner, with Rep. Kasper's idea
with an inspection amendment, would that help alleviate it if they come in and inspected
once a year and document it?

Rodney Pagel: That would be a step in the right direction to help alleviate that problem. It
puts some degree of responsibility there. | think you are going to end up with the ongoing
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issue of who does the certification. What if the homeowner is not home? If the easy
answer is that if it hasn’t been inspected, don't fill the tank. If there is a problem with the
system, don't fill the tank.

Representative N Johnson: In your testimony you used the term “alternation” several
times. Is that a typo or does “alternation” mean something different in law?

Rodney Pagel: It's a typo.

Representative N Johnson: Last comment you made about setting up that time, and if it
is not checked you just don't fill it. Would that open another lawsuit if pipes freeze and now
you blame the LP dealer?

Rodney Pagel: In thinking of my contract, it's my obligation for me to advise them to fill
the tank. They are usually out there filling beforehand. | think the obligation is for me to
advise them when the tank needs to be filled. If your tank is getting low, contact the
propane dealer.

Jim Chyle~Owner of Heartland Gas Company, Park River, North Dakota: (see
attached testimony #7)

My wife is a real estate agent. Not all financing requires inspections. They always want
an appraisal but less that 50% of the time an inspection.

(Holds up a gas pipe.) This is called CSST. Corrugated Stainless Steel Tubing. It is a
flexible neat little pipe. It is nice for running it inside of homes. Since 2008 this pipe has
been recognized by the manufacturer that this is hazardous. The problem comes when
there is a lightning strike, this will be energized and it will short out to duct work or a water
pipe and it will make a leak. There have been homes burned down because of this.

There is a cure for this. My customers all know this. If this passes tomorrow, | don’t have
to tell them this anymore. | wouldn't be responsibie because | didn’t put it in there.

(Refers to invoice and two safety brochures)
When you do a gas check, take pictures and keep on file.

| have been sued. Everybody wants new accounts. We get a phone call in January. Send
the driver out to fill the tank. There is a fire in April. The cause of it was the gas water
heater. | went to court. This would be one of those frivolous lawsuits. We won because
the homeowner did all the work himself. However, my company could have prevented that
had we gone out and done inspection. We didn’t. Now we do.

Representative Nathe: | find it odd that you belong to the association yet you oppose
what is their bill. Have you talked to the association to come to an agreement on this bill?

Jim Chyle: We simply don't agree. There is no in-between. | feel very comfortable being
responsible for what is in my customer’s house. | am the expert.
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Representative Nathe: These are ticking time bombs for your industry. | see in your
testimony “but if the suppliers take responsibility for their work and make sure the system is
safe there is no reason for this legislation.” | agree with you for their work. But if somebody
moves or alters it, it is no longer their work. | fail to see how that is their responsibility.

Jim Chyle: We shouldn't be responsible for a customer that decides to move his furnace
to a different corner of the basement. But we should have some documentation that we
told him not to do it. We should have a paper trail. i'm confident that | wouid win that case
if it goes that far.

Representative Frantsvog: If I'm your customer and ask to do an inspection will you
come and do it?

Jim Chyle: Yes.

Representative Frantsvog: Will you charge for it?

Jim Chyle: No, we only charge if we are doing something. We don't charge because |
don’t want to discourage them from calling. If the furnace breaks and we fix it, they will be
charged for that.

Representative Kreun: On your system check sheet where the customer is suppose to
sign, it says it does not cover “unforeseen happenings.” Wouldn't that be an unforeseen
happening if they made that switch from one side to the other? You are still having them
sign that so that is technically trying to leave you not responsible.

Jim Chyle: | suppose that is true.

No other opposition or neutral testimony.

Chairman Keiser: Closed the hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:
Relating to immunity from civil liability for liquefied petroleum gas dealers.

Work Committee Session Minutes:

Chairman Keiser: Opens the work session on HB 1419

Representative Nathe: This bill has to do with the liability for the petroleum gas dealers.
What it boils down to is it would harmless the petroleum gas dealers if the LP has been
moved or modified by the owner not installed by the LP dealer.

Representative Boe: My question in the bill, | would like some assurance that | ask for
some inspection, that they have to provide that inspection, | need it verified.

Representative Nathe: According to the testimony, they don't have to inspect it, is sounds
like it's an industry standard that if they have a chance, they will go into house, that they will
look over the system to make sure it's properly installed.

Chairman Keiser: Would it be appropriate to have an amendment that incorporates those
2 elements that if a customer requests an inspection of their system, it will be done and at
no charge. The 2™ part, on the initiation of a contract, an inspection of system is required
at no charge.

Representative Ruby: They could check the line for leaks, are they trained to work on the
heating systems? Do they have to have a trained heating and cooling expert that is also
their truck driver? It seems to be 2 different professions.

Mike Rud~Executive Director of ND Propane Gas Association: Some of our guys are
certified, but | won't say everyone has someone on staff that is certified to inspect, some
are just delivery people.

Representative Ruby: They can check for leaks or a regulator or don’t they do that?

Mike Rud: Yes.

Representative Clark: Could we mandate a service at no cost?
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Mike Rud: Our guys are in the $35-$50 range to come and inspect, doing it free, may be
stretching it. | would have to take that back to them.

Representative Boe: We heard from one gentleman that he does it for free now. We are
being asked to remove liability because of modification and somewhere along the line we
have to make sure that the supplier has the opportunity to do this. He will get a lot more
calls if it's at no cost.

Representative Nathe: Is this something that the companies could do when they fill the
tank?

Mike Rud: If it was asked for by a customer, | don't think it wili be a problem and they
would do it at that time, free of charge, because they are on the site and it wouldn'’t be an
extra trip.

Representative Nathe: How often do they go and refill a tank?

Mike Rud: Probabiy 4 to 5 times a year would be the average for a home owner.

Representative Nathe: | would think financially that it would make sense for them to do
that versus leaving it as is.

Mike Rud: | would agree with that.
Chairman Keiser: They shouldn't be required to inspect the furnace, whoever installed
the furnace should to that. What could these people inspect; the liability is outside the

furnace?

Mike Rud: For the most part some of them are qualified to inspect everything but as far as
inspecting a furnace that would be questionable.

Representative Amerman: However, in the bill they get immunity if it happens to a
liquefied petroleum gas appliance. If | work with an appliance, | would have to get an
inspection tag. You are going to have to have people who know all of this, would you
agree?

Mike Rud: | agree with you, but they are going to check the line into the appliance and that
would be the extent of that.

Representative Clark: Have there been some claims that brought this bill over?
Mike Rud: There are far and few between, but when they do, they are quite substantial.

Representative Nathe: As far as the inspection for your dealers, they would be
responsible the gas pipeline and stops at the appliance?

Mike Rud: That's pretty much the case what our guys are experienced with.
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Representative Nathe: As far as this bill is concerned that's what the bill covers.
Mike Rud: That would be correct.

Representative Boe: As it sits today, where does your liability end? You are liable for
anything that is in the house right now. The idea was that if everything was inspected and
ok, you will still be liable, right?

Mike Rud: That's correct.

Representative Boe: But, now we are differentiating where it hooks on the appliance.
Everything needs to be inspected because where it leaks it will be a bomb.

Mike Rud: You are correct. We are trained in those areas but we are not ali trained in the
intricacies of a water heater, furnace or gas stove.

Representative Boe: We talked about an amendment that gives me relief that says, |
want an inspection, are you ok with an amendment?

Mike Rud: | would be ok with the amendment but | don’t know if our association would be
ok with the free of charge. If we could work it in to a delivery process, then there would be
some grounds we could work there.

Representative Boe: So you wanted some language that this request of inspection would
coincide with a delivery?

Mike Rud: | think the language is fine and our guys would respond to that language.

Representative Sukut: If we were to do this and needing an inspection, but we are
looking at the next time they fill it and he created a leak, where do we go then. Now we are
sitting with a gas leak and that’s like a time bomb. It really should be inspected promptly.
How can we address the time frame?

Mike Rud: | think they will be more than willing to look at the site to check in a timely
fashion.

Chairman Keiser: This bill reminds me of a bill yesterday on the floor in terms of strict and
negligent liability, which went down. What currently exists is the dealers are assuming the
100% liability. What this bill does says, if the home or business owner manipulates the
system without informing the supplier, then there is a leak, the bomb goes off, then
suddenly the person responsible for that becomes negligent and the homeowner get the
liability. Is that appropriate when it goes to the same bill we had yesterday? Should the
people who caused the liability be responsible for the liability? This is the basic issue. If |
were the homeowner and manipulated the system, | would be willing to pay for the
inspection to transfer the liability back to the supplier, it we pass this bill.
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Representative Boe: Along the lines of Representative Sukut, when does the liability
transfer? Does it transfer when | make my phone call requesting the inspection or when
the inspection actually has been done? With the 10 day time lapse in-between, where are
we at?

Chairman Keiser: When the inspection is done and it transfers back to the propane
dealer.

Representative Ruby: We are over thinking this bill. If | change the heater, | assume the
liability. If | change that, why should they be liable?

Chairman Keiser: Further questions?

Representative N Johnson: Moves the amendment to change on line 19, vesting to
venting.

Representative Amerman: Second.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion.

Voice vote, motion carried.

Representative Ruby: Do pass as Amended.

Representative Sukut: Second.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion?

Representative Amerman: Good point, if he has trouble with a propane furnace he calls
the furnace man, furnace man is not in the business of handling petroleum, so if he comes
out and still no inspection, is the furnace man also caught up in the lawsuit?

Chairman Keiser: Absolutely, they will list everyone in a lawsuit.

Representative Boe: | would like some amendment that assured us that the inspection
would be preformed upon on request. I'm not going to support the Do Pass as Amended
without the amendment.

Chairman Keiser: Further discussion.

Rol!l call was taken for a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1419 with 9 yeas, 2 nays, 3
absent and Representative Nathe is the carrier.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to immunity from civil liability for liquefied petroleum gas dealers

Minutes: Testimony Attached

Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing.

Representative Kasper. Said that this bill deals with the petroleum gas dealers and
immunity from civil liability as far as how they perform their duties. He said currently if a
dealer brings a propane tank to a person's home and leaves it in good standing and does
all the things needed to properiy install that piece of equipment and leaves the current law

says if someone tampers with the tank and something happens the petroleum dealer still
has liability.

Senator Laffen: You said there was something wrong with the existing law that says they
are liable, is there existing law that says they are actually liable for that or are we just
creating a new section that says they aren’t?

Rep. Kasper: He said under current law they are liable.

Senator Andrist: Said that if the petroleum company installs the tank then someone
tampers with the system inside the house but there was a problem with the tank and it was
clear it was not the tampering that caused the problem, that wouldn't dismiss the liability
from the installer would it?

Rep. Kasper: | would assume not.

Mike Rud, Executive Director of the North Dakota Propane Gas Association:
Testimony Attached (1).

Senator Schneider: Asked if this was a result of a law suit.

Mike: They are seeing different cases across the country and it is not the frequency of
them as much as the expense. He said they are doing a great job with the training but
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someone is looking for deep pockets in this process. He said the deep pockets are either
the propane dealer or the insurance company.

Senator Schneider: Said that you mentioned that are state, propane dealers have to

spend time and money on these suits, is there any evidence that this is happening in the
state?

Mike: He said there are people who have been directly impacted.

Senator Schneider: Asked if he could give him a number.

Mike: Said that there were three or four in the process of being reviewed.

Senator Schneider: Asked if there has been a judgment against one of his people.
Mike: Yes there has been.

Senator Andrist: Asked if the other issue is liability insurance and if it would impact all the
dealers.

Mike: He said it is tough to find people to insure a propane dealer and right now across the
state and the nation there are only three or four.

Senator Nodland: Asked who regulates the industry now and what the standards are.
Mike: Said they are regulated by the national fire code. They also have rules in pamphlets
that they use for the propane industry on how people are trained to do the certified work to
maintain consumer safety.

Chairman Klein: Asked if everyone was required on the deliveries to be trained.

Mike: Everyone who is delivering propane needs to be trained.

Chairman Klein: Has to go through class?

Mike: Said that for insurance purposes you don't find many insurers that will take anybody
on that does not have the certified and trained employees.

Chairman Klein: The issue here is if someone has tampered or modified their system we
don't want to hold the delivery guy responsible for something he did not do?

Mike: That is correct.
Ken Astrup, General Manger of Dakota Plains Cooperative: Testimony Attached (2).

Senator Murphy: Said they he has heard concerns from people in the industry that not
everyone has the same policies and is not doing due diligence.
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Ken: He said there is no way of knowing if that is true.

Senator Andrist. He said that he hopes this is a standard for the industry and he has
never had anyone tell him he couidn't fill his propane tank without checking his system. He
said it would appear to him that not everyone is as careful as you are.

Ken: The national propane gas association along with our state agency has done a lot to
try to inform the dealers of what their responsibilities are. He said there are numerous laws
and federal regulations that they have to comply with, one is annually that have to send a
letter out to everyone that they provide service to explaining the dangerous of propane and
what they should do if they smell a leak. They also have to do regular checks of the
regulators and the line going up to the facility. He said the concern comes in when
someone wants to replace a heater and does the insulation himself and they don't get

everything tight and there is a gas leak and they are held liable as the supplier of that
product.

Steve Becher, Executive Director of Professional Insurance Agents of ND: Testimony
Attached (3).

Senator Nodiand: Asked about the propane tanks for gas grills.

Steve: He said that the people who take an elbow off the main line and put a valve on there
going up to their grill, they don't have the dealer do that. He said what this bill would do if
the dealer did something inside the house he would be liable and take care of it but if it was
the consumer who made the changes the consumer would be heid responsible.

Chairman Klein: Asked who would determine who was responsible.
Steve: Said that his understanding is that it would be the fire marshal.

Senator Schneider: Said that he fully supports the notion that if you didn't cause any injury
you shouldn’t be heid liable. He asked if the dealer is unaware of the alteration and the

alteration is a direct cause of the loss you would still have to potentially litigate the direct
cause of the loss.

Steve: Absolutely unless there is a cut and dry case where the fire marshal said that he

knows where it happened then they could walk away right away but there will be cases
where it ends up in litigation.

Senator Andrist: Said that he wonders how active the insurance companies are in
establishing rules for their insurance coverage.

Steve: He said absolutely and from an insurance companies stand point they give
guidelines to their dealers but they have to rely on the dealer to do those things. There is
no way the insurance company can go out and follow behind them to make sure they are
following through with the recommendations. They do have strict guidelines.

Senator Andrist: Asked if there were immunity laws in place for natural gas.
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Steve: He said he doesn't know if that is the case. He knows that there are industries out
there that have immunity in certain cases.

Dale Beck, Dakota Ag Coop: He is in support of the bill. He spoke in regards to the
natural gas issue. He said the natura! gas company’s deal under a different set of codes.
They work under the national pipeline safety codes and the propane industry works under
the national fire protection association 54 and 58. He said they are the adopted pamphlets
by the North Dakota fire marshal's office and part of the code. There are codes that they
work under. He said they can't control which dealers comply with these codes but they are
not asking that those dealers be immune from liability. He said they are asking for the

people who are doing it the right way. He said the average litigation cost is two million
dollars.

Chairman Klein: Asked what the CETP, Ceriified Employee Training Program was.

Dale: He said in order to become a fully certified and trained employee it will take you three
weeks of training with refresher training every three years.

Christopher Friez, North Dakota Grain Dealers Association: Testimony Attached (4).

Alan Alstad, ND Association of Justice: In opposition of the bill and he gave an example
of what happened to him.

Rod Pagel, ND Association of Justice: Testimony Attached and Proposed Amendment.

(5).

Senator Nodland: Asked if the amendments were trying to take the immunity from the
propane and putting it to the person who is breaking the law.

Rod: Said absolutely not. He said the immunity provisions will still apply, it will still provide
that if the propane dealer is reasonable in his actions and they have someone certified to
look at the system and they go out there on an annual bases.

Senator Andrist: Said that he doesn't think that most of these provisions are ownerless but
better than to put them in the code, he would like the insurance agency to have composed
some of these conditions on the people for whom they write insurance. That is where he

would fike to see it done by the private sector because ultimately they are concerned about
the safety or people.

Rod: He said he would hope that everyone is concerned. He said he doesn't doubt that the
LP dealers in this room are responsible in how they handie their business. The problem is
your going to have some individuals who won't be responsible. He said there needs to be
something that would make sure everyone is responsible who is able to claim that immunity
provision. He also said he doesn’t believe this will save any litigation costs. This will come
down to what was the direct cause of the loss.
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Jim Chyle, Owner of Heartland Gas Company: Testimony and pamphlets and pictures
attached (6). He talked about the services he offers to his customers.

Senator Larsen: Asked if he felt that he was liable if a regulator went bad that no one had
modified, for a faulty part do you think you are liable for that.

Jim: No | am not responsible for that. He said the inspection does not cover manufacturer
defects or internal workings of sealed combustion. If it is a problem with the regulator it
goes back to the manufacturer.

Chairman Klein: Said that after he leaves the house and the home owner makes a
modification and something happens this law is saying you are not liable. He asked if he
feels comfortable that because of his inspection he will be off the hook.

Jim: Very much. He said if he did the inspection and the customer signed a document that
says he is not to touch anything.

Senator Murphy: Asked if his concern that there are too many in your industry that are not
doing this.

Jim: He said his biggest concern is there will be more accidents. He said they can police it
themselves.

Senator Murphy: Stated that everyone is certified.
Jim: No one is requiring them to be certified.

Senator Murphy: So aren't you really concerned with that everyone isn't certified or
licensed.

Rod: He said yes it would be nice but doesn’t know how they would get there.

Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to civil liability for liquefied petroleum gas dealers

Minutes: Discussion

Chairman Klein: Discussion on House Bill 1419. He asked if they needed to gather any
more information.

Senator Schneider: Said that he had spoke with Mike with providing that court case where
there was a judgment. He said he doesn't know the scope of the problem. He said having a
real life example would be good.

Senator Laffen: said he doesn’t have his mind made up. He has asked the bill sponsor if
there was a specific law that says they do have liability for that system. He was told that
there is and he could not find it anywhere in the statute.

Senator Schneider: He said that they all owe a duty of reasonable care to each other, just
walking down the street. He said that certainly someone who is installing propane
accessories owe that duty as well, it is a tort based remedy. Said he wasn't sure if there
was a statute which gives rise to tort liability in the state but it is a long established law that
we all owe this duty to each of each other to reasonable care. You could obviously make
someone immune from suit when the y don'’t exercise reasonable care, we can do that as a
legisiature but there is no statute that says you are liable under these circumstances. That
is just something that would be determined by a judge.

Senator Laffen: He gave an example of a building he built and stated what he would be
liable in the inside of the building for seven years. He said they carry insurance to protect
them from that liability. If the owner made some modifications to the inside of the building
that violated building code and it caused a problem they would win that every time. He said
he is questioning the need for this, aren't there things we are liable for or not liable for. Do
we try to put it all into code?

Senator Schneider: He said he doesn't think this bill changes much. If there is a massive
explosion and someone made alterations there is going to be a very expensive battle of the
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experts as to if that alteration caused the injury that resulted. You would have to do that
under current law today. He said this provides immunity in name only.

Chairman Klein: Said he believes that Steve Becher from the insurance industry made the
point he was looking for, nothing is going to change if there is a big explosion, the battle
starts to who is liable. He said that for the insurance industry it provides another layer to
help with giving coverage, a littie bit of immunity.

Senator Schneider: Said that they will still get dragged in because you have to still find out
if the alteration was a direct cause of the injury. He said from the public policy standpoint it
is probably dangerous if propane sellers think they have immunity when they actually may
not. He thinks they would relax a little bit.

Senator Nodland: Said that he thinks the bill is about the cost of insurance. He said Steve
Becher had said the insurance costs are ten times higher than other flammable liquid
dealers. That is what prompted most of this bill and to obtain it there are only four insurance
companies that will insure these dealers.

Senator Andrist. She said if you are drawn into a lawsuit you have costs. If there is any
doubt they will draw them into a lawsuit anyway. He said if it is clear that you have

immunity if it doesn’t prevent you from getting driven into a lawsuit it will help you get out of
it a little quicker.

Senator Larsen: Said he has put in hundreds of washers and dryers and hot water heaters
and there is not certification to do it. When he was told he couldn't light his own pilot light,
there is no reason the propane dealer should be liable for me doing something in my house
or other people’'s homes. He said to have them liable for the piping system or what is in the
house is wrong.

Senator Schneider: He said that if you alter it, they wouldn't be liable under current law if
the person’s alteration is fifty percent or more of the cause of their own injury.

Senator Murphy: He said that is what Jim was saying if he does things right he won'’t have
to pay. He said he knows a lot of people who want this bill. He didn’t get any quotes saying
this would lessen the insurance or even keep it even. He doesn't know if they think this is
worth anything. He asked if they got any quotes from insurance people.

Chairman Klein: Said that Steve Becher from PIA, as an insurance guy seemed to imply
that this is helpful to their industry. He was supportive of the bill.

Senator Schneider: He said a couple of points, if someone brings a frivolous lawsuit
against you in North Dakota under rule eleven you are entitled to your attorney fees and
costs. He said that Jim did a good job making hat point. He said he has to pay malpractice
insurance and if he had immunity from malpractice he wouldn’t have to pay very much for
insurance.

Senator Nodland: Said when you have an industry where you are down to four companies
that provide insurance in your state, there is a probtem with this industry and the price is
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going to get prohibited where propane will get prohibited in price. He said they need to
address that issue here in this committee.

Senator Andrist: He said everyone carries liability to protect themselves from their own

negligence they are only asking to be responsible for their own negligence and not
someone else’s.

Senator Schneider: Said that under current law that is all they are responsible for.

Senator Andrist: Said that they are responsible for defending themselves and for paying
their insurance premiums.

Senator Schneider: He said the aspect of insurance is important and they don’t want
people going out of business because of high insurance rates that is an important concern.
He said that potentially licensing these guys or assuring they are all trained would certainly
lower insurance cost and feels that is something that the commitiee couid look at, if they
are looking at reducing insurance premiums.

Senator Laffen: Said he finds it odd that you don’t have to have a license to install gas
piping.

Senator Larsen: Said that they do have training in that. He wasn’t certified but he was
trained. He made the comment that you can do things yourself but they just have to be
inspected by the right professional.

Chairman Klein: Said they would wait on this and he closed the meeting.



2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
Roosevelt Park Room, State Capitol

HB 1419
March 21, 2011
Job Number 15739

[ ] Conference Committee,

Committee Clerk Signature é% W

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to civil liability for liquefied petroleum gas dealers

Minutes: Discussion, Handout and Vote

Chairman Klein: Opened the meeting on House Bill 1419. He said they would be getting
some additional information from Dale Beck.

Senator Schneider: Said he was looking for a case that resulted in a two million dollar
judgment and wanted to base his vote on what has actually happened in a court of law or
on a settlement. He said he would like to read that and see if it addresses some of the
problems identified by the proponents of the bill.

Chairman Klein: Asked if that later paragraph in there describe the issue.

Senator Schneider: Said that 11.6 million paid out in claims or any of those associated
with injuries that arise directly from alterations that is what | want to see from a case. He
said he doubts that you would see a case where injuries were directly caused by alterations
that ended up in a substantial judgment against the propane dealer.

Mike Rud, North Dakota Propane Gas Association: Handout (1). He said he tried to get
that information and the best he can do is the information that is in the handout.

Senator Schneider: Said he can't wrap his head around if the injury was not directly
caused by alterations why would there be a settlement for two million dollars. He is not sure
even this legislation would address something like this.

Mike: He said he thinks that case does point out what happened there in the case involving
the little girl; it talks about the line that was left uncapped. That would be similar to what we
are looking for coverage on here is a case like that, where the marketer was not at fault.

Senator Schneider: He said the question would be then if the marketer was not at fauit
why would there be a two million dollar settiement. That is very rare in North Dakota.



Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee
HB 1419

March 21, 2011

Page 2

Mike: Said that goes to speak to the concerns we have in this issue, these folks are looking
for deep pockets. He said they got the wholesaler for fifteen million dollars. So the two
million pales in comparison to the fifteen million and all the other pockets they go after in
these cases. There are people who specialize in going after propane cases where they
think they might be able to put a case up against a marketer.

Senator Schneider: Said in rebuttal to that deep pockets have good attorneys typically and
if there was no fault they would have not settle for two million dollars.

Senator Andrist: Said he can’t see a down side to saying someone isn't responsible for
someone else's negligence. He talked about other bills where there is no way they could of
possibly had control over those loses.

Chairman Klein: Said that he forwarded Paul Munches letter where during the storm
someone bought a tank, took it downstairs and installed it, the house blew up and his
company was on the hook for selling them that tank. He said he doesn't know if they will
get to the answers to the questions that Senator Schneider is asking.

Senator Schneider: He said that as long as everybody realizes there will still be a dispute
about direct fault here. He said the insurance company or the plaintiff's attorney will still

have to prove direct fault or direct cause. He said he is not sure this legislation does much
beyond existing law.

Chairman Klein: He said it provides a statement to whether you are a propane dealer
trying to get insurance for his company, the cost continue to go up and they pass those
costs along.

Senator Schneider: He said he believes propane marketers or dealers shoulid not be held

liable where the direct result is because of an alteration but he doesn’t believe they are
now.

Senator Murphy: He said in regards to what Jim had said, some of these guys aren't
certified and if they have the idea, if we pass this bill, that they are not liabie they will get
even laxer. That is the downside he sees.

Chairman Klein: Asked if everyone that delivers propane is certified.

Mike: Said he can't say that everybody is certified but it is almost impossible to get insured
if you are not certified. He said there are not many carriers out there; it has gone down to
four or five state wide that will even offer insurance. He said they have trained about three
hundred and eighty people over the course of the last four or five years each year. He
believes they are doing all they can to be on board and be prudent operators.

Chairman Klein: He commented about someone he knows getting trained and said
everybody has a littie bit of knowledge.

Mike: Said that most people if they are going to go out on a route, if they are going to be
delivering propane they will ride in the truck for sixty days and watch how it is done and in
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that time process they will have taken their basic training and principles for propane
delivery as well as basic principles of. propane itself and they will also have to take a
hazmat course before they can deliver that propane by themselves they are going to need
to be certified and that is what their training programs are for.

Senator Nodland: Moved a do pass on engrossed bill 1419.

Senator Larsen: Seconded the mation.

Senator Schneider: Stated that he was asking legislative counsel to draft an amendment
at the request of Jim Chyle's but | don't think that will change the committee’s consideration
of this. He said that if there is any interest from the committee he would be happy to bring
that down from legislative counsel. He explained what the amendment would do. It would
add a third element. He said Jim’'s point being that there is no incentive to inspect these
appliances to even see if they have been altered in an unsafe way.

Senator Andrist. Said he talked to him about that to, thought it was a good amendment at
first but then thought who is responsible for that inspection if a guy buys from three or four
suppliers. He said it doesn’t make sense for them all to inspect it.

Senator Schneider: Said you wouldn't be on the hook for anything uniess you delivered
gas or made an alteration to the purchaser. So on your first contact with the customer you
make that inspection and then you are clear for the duration. He said he does understand
those concerns.

Senator Nodland: Asked who would do the inspection.

Senator Schneider: The propane seller, marketer, handler who wanted to claim immunity.
He explains the process and how it would work.

Senator Nodland: Asked why this would make it stronger.

Senator Schneider: Said it would make it stronger only because it would encourage
individuals to do that inspection. He said right now you don’t have to inspect at all. If
someone has altered their propane devise you can just let it be and still claim immunity as
long as though alterations were made without the knowledge or consent of the petroleum
dealer, handler or seller. He stated that if you had performed an inspection in the last five
years you would be good to go.

Senator Andrist: Asked if you could be sued on the bases of that inspection.

Senator Schneider: Said you could be sued on the bases of anything but if the dealer has
inspected the appliance and meets the other two elements, he is free of liability for the next
five years.

Chairman Kiein: He said they need to establish a whole new inspection agency because
that isn’t happening out there. He said he is looking for the price and doesn’t want them to
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come into his house and he is satisfied that everything has been hooked up properly. He
said they have had this discussion about the five years.

Senator Murphy: He said he is concerned about the wording on the amendment and likes
the idea of the five years. He knows a lot don’t and some are doing it. He feels they should
be responsible for the connections to the appliances and not the appliances themselves, as
the amendment seems to intimate.

Chairman Klein: He said their responsibility ends at the tank.

Senator Schneider. He would think all the people that testified would do that and this
encourages the others to do the right thing. He thinks that there are some that wouldn't
inspect.

Senator Laffen: Said he doesn’t believe they would fill a tank when they see something is
wrong. This bill just gives them immunity from something they didn’t do. He said he doesn't
think they should be responsible for something someone else is doing to their system,
doesn’t feel that five years even covers it, anybody could do anything inside of five years in
their house.

Senator Nodland: Said that there is a motion on the floor and call for a question.

Chairman Klein: Said that a question has been called on a do pass on engrossed House
Bill 1419.

Roll Call Vote: Yes-6 No-1

Senator Nodland to carry the bill
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Chairman Keiser and members of the Committee:

For the record, my name is Mike Rud. I'm the Executive Director of the North Dakota
Propane Gas Association. NDPGA represents over 100 propane retailers and another 100
propane equipment vendors from across the state and Upper Midwest. On behalf of our

. association, I'm here urging you to recommend a “DO PASS” on HB 1419,

The idea of being guilty until proven innocent doesn’t really have much of a ring to it
when you live in this great nation and state we call home. However, for years now, this is
the spot many propane marketers have found themselves in when a mishap involving the
product they seil and service occurs. A “DO PASS” recommendation on HB 1419 willgo a
long way towards changing this scenario by doing away with uncalled for lawsuits and court

cases that needlessly cost our state’s propane dealers time and money.



. HB 1419 is a very simple bill. HB 1419 has several goals:

+ [t takes the propane marketer oﬁt of a lawsuit if the propane system was modified
without his knowledge and the direct cause of the loss and/or damages is the
modification or alteration.

» The bill does not require consumers to notify the propane dealer when modifications or
repairs are made.

e Farmers and home improvement enthusiasts can still do what they wish if they feel
capable of their skills. The bill does not prevent that, it simply says the dealer is not

. lliable if the modifications cause problems.

Seventeen other states currently have limited liability laws protecting propane
dealers. As former state representative Francis Waid, who appeared in front of House IBL
committees many times on behalf of business was so fond of saying, “If they weren't
responsible for breaking it, they shouldn't have to pay to fix it.” That sentiment sums up the
purpose of HB 1419,

Again, NDPGA members urge a “DO PASS” on HB 1419.

Thank you for your time and consideration.



States with Limited Liability Legislation

. As of April 2008

¢ Alabama
e Arizona
e Arkansas

¢ Colorado

* Georgia
e Jowa

e Kansas

e Kentucky

¢ Louisiana

e Missouri

e Nebraska

¢ New Jersey

e North Carolina
. e South Dakota

» Tennessee

e Texas

o Utah
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Chairman Keiser and members of the committee. My name is Ken Astrup.
| currently serve as General Manager of Dakota Plains Cooperative,
headquartered in Valley City. | appear here today, in support of HB 1419,

Our cooperative does a large volume of business in propane. We have
an excellent safety record. We have a policy that says we will not take on
any new propane customers, unless we are allowed to do an inspection
of the propane installation, including the line and hook ups in the house or
building. f we are denied the opportunity to do the inspection, we refuse
to provide service.

We have employees that are well trained to do the installation of a new
propane tank and line. Once the installation has been completed, we
annually send out a letter to the customer, reminding them of the dangers

. of propane and what they should do if they smell propane or suspect they
have a leak.

We regularly do the inspection and replacement of regulators as the law
requires. ‘

We can do everything possible to ensure the installation was done
correctly and everything is functioning properly.

Yet the property owner can make changes to the system, inside the
building and uniess they notify us, we have no idea they have altered the
properly installed system.

As suppliers, we continue to fill the tank, check the line to the building, &

replace regulators. Doing everything the law requires to make sure the
installation remains safe.

. Yet, unknown to us, the owner has made changes to the system, that are



unsafe and can cause a fire or explosion. And when it does occur, we, as
suppliers are told the accident was our fault.

People say, that is why we carry insurance. Yes, it is, but ultimately, it is the
customer that has 1o pay that increased insurance cost.

With this bill, we are asking that the consumer that made the un-approved
changes to the system and failed to notify the supplier of those changes,
s0 we have the chance to correct them, be held liable for their actions.

| urge you to support HB 1419.

Ken Astrup, General Manager
Dakota Plains Cooperative



72:74'”294
Ve 5/?/
Testimony for HB 1419 — ND House IBL Committee
i

Chairman Keiser and members of the House Industry, Business, and Labor
Committee for the record my name is Steve Becher and | am Executive Director of
the Professional Insurance Agents of ND. PIA of ND represents over 300 main
street insurance agencies with over 1000 agents across the state of North Dakota.
| am here representing our association lending support and asking for a “Do Pass”
recommendation on House Bill 1419.

LPG dealers are put in a difficult position in that they are delivering a highly
volatile product that requires a complete understanding of the safety features of
the equipment used to store and disperse the product and once they leave the
delivery site they have no control over modifications or repairs to the system
made by the customer or a third party. When there is a claim, the LPG dealer is
immediately pulled in even when the loss is caused by modifications or repairs
that were not completed by the dealer. The opponents of this bill will say that it
will be worked out by the courts system, but the LPG dealer will still incur costs
with the time and effort required to defend a lawsuit. The LPG dealer’s insurance
company will also incur costs sometimes into the tens of thousands of dollars in
the defense of these claims even when it is obvious that the loss was caused by
the actions of others. These costs are then passed on to the dealers through the
insurance premiums that they pay and eventually to the consumer through the
price of fuel.

[ recently spoke with a ND insurance company that is one of the main writers of
LPG insurance and asked them about premiums compared to other flammable
products as well as availability of coverage in the market. 1 was told that there
are only 4 companies that are active in writing LPG accounts due to the volatility
of the product and the severity of claims. Most companies also have strict
underwriting guidelines on whether or not they will write an LPG dealer such as
limited number of gallons sold, certain percentage of LPG sales in relation to
other products, and many loss control inspection requirements for the dealer.



. PIAND Testimony — HB 1419 (page 2)

The insurance companies, however, have no way to inspect any modifications or
repairs made by the customer or third party and are made to incur defense costs
for the LPG dealer when the loss occurs. According to the insurance company
underwriter that | spoke to, all of these factors together make the product liability
premiums for an LPG dealer about 10 times the premiums for other flammable
liquid dealers such as gas or fuel oil.

LPG dealers have enough risk in their businesses with the volatility of the
product they sell, the strict certification training they provide for their employees,
and the safety measures they employ to protect their customers without the
added risk of incurring costs for losses that totally beyond their control. In the
interest of fairness, | would encourage a “Do Pass” recommendation on HB 1419.
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Chairman Keiser and members of the House industry Business & Labor Committee, my name is
Evan Mandigo and | am the State Executive for the North Dakota Association of Independent
Insurance Agents.

I am here today to testify in favor of House Bill 1419. Itis a simpler version of similar legislation
introduced in the 2009 session dealing with the same subject. Our Association supported the
bill in the 2009 session and is pleased to do so again.

This bill is about being responsible for your own actions. | live in an area just outside Bismarck
served by a local propane dealer and | am gratefu! they are around on the rare occasion
something needs fixing. Part of the cost of supplying propane for my home’s heating needs is
their expertise and knowledge about the installation of my system. | expect them to be

responsible if they repair something incorrectly because the consequence of a mistake on their
part can be dramatic.

| would never attempt to alter, modify, or repair the system because | depend on their
expertise and | know less than nothing about liquefied petroleum gas fuel systems. |
understand some customers feel they know enough to attempt to safely alter, modify, or repair
their propane system. Under current statute, those folks now can hold the dealer responsible
for civil liability even if the dealer knew nothing about nor consented to the changes that could
lead directly to an event hurts someone or damages property.

Whether these customers are qualified to safely make the changes is not the subject of the bill.
They can continue to make the changes, but the liquefied petroleum dealers want immunity
from civil liability if the changes cause an event. | think that is a reasonable request. They
should not be held responsible for changes they knew nothing about nor obviously had no
chance to examine to be sure the installation remained in compliance with all relevant code
regquirements.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, this is a narrowly crafted bill designed to protect
the liquid petroleum gas dealers from unquantifiabie liabilities created by unknown
modifications done without their knowledge by their customers. As | indicted earlier, this bili
is about personal responsibility. If you want to change a propane system and that change
causes damage, don’t expect your propane dealer to be responsible. Propane dealers invest
heavily in safe practices and equipment to do their best to prevent accidents. Folks who
modify their systems for unintended and unknown uses do not. They should not enjoy the



current almost absolute liability imposed on liquid petroleum gas dealers but rather be
responsible for their own actions.

Chairman Keiser and members of the committee, for these reasons we urge a do pass
recommendation from the House Industry Business and Labor Committee and | will be happy to
answer your questions.
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TESTIMONY ON HB 1419
HOUSE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR COMMITTEE
January 25, 2011
Presented by Christopher Friez, on behalf of the
North Dakota Grain Dealers Association

Good afternoon Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. My name 1s
Christopher Friez from the Crowley Fleck law firm and I'm here on behalfl of
the North Dakota Grain Dealers Association.

The North Dakota Grain Dealers association is in support of HB 1419,

The Grain Dealers feel that it is common sense that an innocent supplier of a
legal product should not be held liable for the negligent acts of another after the
product is sold.

‘ We’re told by an agent who writes coverage on many ND grain elevators that
. some insurance carriers automatically charge an extra $5000 premium for a
business handling LP gas, and that there 1s a $25,000 LP deductible for bodily
injury or property damage. These costs and liabilities discourage businesses
from even handling the product for their customers. We’re not saying HB 1419
will eliminate all of that, but it would decrease exposure for the carrier and that

can only help with the premium and deductible challenges.

On the back side of this testimony is a Resolution adopted by the North Dakota
Grain Dealers Association at their convention held on January 18, 2011 in
Fargo. In sum, the resolution provides that the Grain Dealers Association
supports legislation, such as HB 1419, because it is unreasonable to hold an LP
gas dealer responsible when the dealer has no control over the modification and
repair to equipment, which is done without the dealer’s knowledge and consent,
after LP gas equipment leaves the dealer and is in the hands of the user.

The North Dakota Grain Dealers Association stands in support of HB 1419 and
urges a Do Pass.

. Thank you.



Resolution on LP gas dealer liability
January 18, 2011 — NDGDA convention in Fargo

Whereas, after LP gas equipment leaves the LP gas dealer and is in the
hands of the consumer/user the dealer has no controi over modification or
repair to the equipment done without the dealer’s knowledge and consent,
and

Whereas, legislation is being proposed to relieve the dealer of civil liability
for accidents caused by such modifications and repair beyond his control,
and

Whereas, it is unreasonable to hold a dealer responsible in such situations,

Therefore Be it Resolved the North Dakota Grain Dealers Association
supports the legislation to relieve the LP gas dealer of civil liability.
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o 1/25/1/
Testimony in Opposition to House Bill No. 1419

Respectfully Submitted by:

Rodney E. Pagel

Pagel Weikum, PLLP
1715 Burnl Boat Drive
Madison Suite
Bismarck, ND 58503
701-250-1369

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee:

Thank you for allowing me to speak with you this moming. I am an attorney from Bismarck and
I have been practicing in North Dakota for eighteen (18) years. [ am here in opposition to House
Bill No. 1419

North Dakota law both statutory and through the use of jury instructions already addresses the
issues that House Bill No. 1419 attempts to address. Attached for your convenience is a sample
of a few of the North Dakota Pattern Jury Instructions dealing with these 1ssues:

1) Fault

. 2) Proximate Cause
3) Comparative Fault
4) Assumption of Risk

The statutes and the jury instructions provide an appropriate framework within which the Courts
can determine responsibility in all cases, including matter involving liquefied petroleum gas.

"This bill provides immunity even if the dealer knew about the alternatioh and kept filling the
tank; even though they knew of the alternation and possible problem. The proposed legislation
provides no relief for thousands of people who purchase homes ever year heated by LP Gas and
who do not have the expertise to understand what modifications have, or have not been, made by
prior owners. The persons who are in the best position fo be aware of these inappropriate
modifications are the dealers themselves.

Last, ] would suggest that if we are going to implement immunity, should we also not implement
strict liability? If there was no alternation at all and there is an incident which occurs, should not
the LP dealer be strictly liability for any and all damages which occurred? Why indeed are
businesses given the benefit over citizens?

1 would ask that you vote “no” on House Bill No. 1419,

Thank you again for your time. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.



Definition of "Fault”

2000- Torf Liability C-2.50

The term “fault’ as used in these instructions means [strict liability for product defect] [breach of
warranty] [negligence] [assumption of risk] {misuse of a product for which the Defendant
otherwise would be liable] [dram shop fiability] [failure to exercise reasonable care to avoid an
injury or to mitigate damages).

NDCC 32-03.2-01, NDCC 32-03.2-03 (7/8/87 - 4/30/93)



Proximate Cause

2008- Tort Liability C-21

h

A proximate cause is a cause which, in natural and continuous sequence, produces the injury, and
without which, the injury would not have occurred. It is o cause which had a substantial part 1n
bringing about the injury either immediately or through events which foliow one another,

[There may be more than one proximate cause of the mjury. The faull of two or more persons
may contribute 1o cause the injury, and in such casc, each person's fault is regarded as a
proximate cause.]

Beilke by Beilke v. Coryell, 524 NW2d 607 (ND 1994)
Andrews v. O'Hearn, 387 NW2d 716 (ND 1986)

Knorr v. K-Mart Corp., 300 NW2d 47 (ND 1980)
Froemke v. Otier Tail Power Co., 276 NW 146 (ND 1937)



Comparative Fault
2002- Tort Liabitity C-2.82

You will return a special verdict in which you will make special findings of fact determining:
1) who was at fault, if anyonc;
2) whether such fault was a proximate cause of damages;

3) the respective percentages of fault allocated to the Defendant|s], the Plaintiff, or anyone else
who contributed to proximately cause any damages;

4) the amount of Plaintiff’s {or Defendant’s[s’]] damages without reduction for fault.
[ Any damages awarded will be reduced by any percentage of fault allocated to the Plaintiff.
However, if you allocate 50% or more of fault to the Plaintiff, the Plaintiff will not recover any

damages.]

The court will reduce the damages by any percentage of fault allocated to the Plaintift. You are
not to reduce any damage amounts.

This instruction is not meant to suggest that you should find anyone at fault. It 1s to explain the
relationship between the atlocation of fault and damages.

NDCC 32-03.2-02
Sollin v. Wangler, 200F ND 104, 627 N.W.2d 159



Assumption of Risk
2002- Tort Liability C-

-2
~1
o

A person assumes the risk of [injury] [loss] i the person 1) has actual knowledge ol a nisk of
[injury] [loss], 2) has freedom of choice to avoid the risk, 3) voluntarily encouniers the risk, and
4) [injury] [loss] is proximately caused by the encounter. If you find that a person has assumed
the risk of [injury} [loss] you may consider that as evidence of fault.

NDCC 32-03.2-02

Rodenberg v. Fargo-Moorhead Young Men’s Christian Ass’n, 2001 ND 139, 632 NW2d 407
Spieker v. Westgo, Inc., 479 NW2d 837 (ND 1992)

Olson v. Chesterton, 256 NW2d 530 (ND 1977)
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HeartlandGas Company /0‘25/[/

13209 Highway17
Park River, ND 58270-9603
Phone 701-284-7480 Fax 701-284-7492
Email: heartlandgas@polarcomm.com

Jim Chyle, Owner of Heartland Gas Company, Park River, North Dakota
In business for 24 years

With this legislation the propane company is not responsible for anything
inside the home.

So who is responsible? The furnace man, the plumber for installing the

water heater, the department store for selling the gas range and gas clothes
dryer?

No, these people all deal in the individual parts of the gas system and have

very little knowledge of gas code and in many instances haven’t even read
the installation manual.

Who is the expert for the complete gas system? It should be the gas
supplier. If he has time to do it, many companies when winter is over the
propane man is hauling fertilizer, diesel fuel or in the tire shop. Propane
should be a full time position.

The gas supplier is trained to not only deliver propane but also trained to:

e Inspect the gas system in the home (make sure the system
is save and efficient)

e Perform a GAS check (the industry standard evaluation)

e Take pictures of entire gas system

¢ Instruct and educate the homeowner on the safety of the
gas system in their home and if any changes are made the
gas company must be notified

e Continually have a relationship with the customer via
safety brochures, decals, newsletters, gas bills, websites,
etc. All of these forms of safety media all contain



information on the importance of having a trained
professional for all service and modifications to the gas
system.

o Company must establish what they feel is a reasonable
amount of time to repeat inspection my company is
comfortable with 5 years.

and

¢ Most importantly, the propane supplier has the ability to
interrupt the gas supply when the system is not in
compliance with current gas codes and safety standards

Propane can be a dangerous product, but if the suppliers take responsibility
for their work and make sure the system is safe there is no reason for this
piece of legislation. We will never eliminate all lawsuits, nor should we.
We can hope that Attorneys, Insurance Companies, Judges and Juries are all

made up of reasonable people; if a propane company is liable they should be
sued.

This bill protects approximately 100 propane companies in the State of
North Dakota.

Who is protecting the 640,000 residents?



RESIDENTIAL S NPGA 1985
/1 GAS APPLIANCE SYSTEM CHECK A #5610

GAS C-ECK ® GAS CHECK
Number Companyi{location
Call Date
Name Date Requested
Call Taker
Address Name
Instructions:
Telephone: Office Home
Performance Check: item Central Heating 1| Space Heater 2 | Water Heater 3 Range 4 Clothes Dryer 5 6 7
Manutacturer
Model No
Serial No.
Fuel
BTU 0ag 600 000 NIA NIA 000 000
Age
Manual Shutoff (Instatted/Existing)
Sediment Trap (installed|Existing)
Control MfgriMode! No, I [
Pilot{s}
Ignition System{s) Mfgr/Model Ne.
Thermastatls) Migr/Modet No.
Pilot Safety System
Burnerls)
Combustion Chamber NA NiA
Filters NiA NiA
. ’ N/A N/A
NJA NIA NJA
venting
Combustion Air
Red Tag (Removed from Service|
TANKICYLINDER (Add'l Serial #'s):
5T [T NT PIGTAS FITTIRG {ITTINES
siz SERIAL NUMBER MFR MFR. DATE 1ET DATE Tioh cond CON. LoND. tow0. | tonn N [M“[E);riﬂm LA
PIPING/REGULATOR OPERATION/CONDITION
PIPING TEGUTATOR REGUUATOR WFR MODEL REC. VENT HOW FIOW TOCK UF
SINGLE [ WEEER T S| DATE CODBE CONOITION : POSITION PROTECTED PRESSURE PRESSURE
STAGE
IN. WG IN. WG
TWO 157 PSIG PSIG
STAGE
2ND IN. WC IN. WC
SYSTEM LEAK TEST
SINGLE STAHT PRESSURE END PRESSURE TIME HELD SYSTEM 0K Comments:
TINCHES WC) {INCHES WC.
STAGE :
ST {PSIG) {PSIG)
™o | ®
IINCHES WL WNCHES WLl
STAGE 2ND
This inspection covers (propans/LP-gas) items and equipmant visible and accassibla to the service
tachnician and repressmis he conditions sxisting on the date of inspaction. It doos not cover latent or
manutaciuring defacis, the internal working of sealad aqulpn'_bant, of structural components, and cannol Reference Invoice No. Date
b rued to cover future detects or unleresesn happenings. M. Day. ¥
. !
(Pansa Printl Piease Puni)
« Knaw how to furn ofl gas in case of emergency. Certity that | have completed the System Check as prescribed.
* Have Sme!md propane and can detect its odor. Partarmad Odor Test (_J Parformed Pressure Test L ne
* Have raceived the Consumer Safsty Information and material. raced Sal 0 —=
* Had gas system deficiencies and/or corrections, if any. tlsarly explained to me. noad Salety Bacal m Latt Consumar Sataty Inlo _J res

d maierial
* Am safisfied with the service work performed. and maers

Customes’s Signulvre Secvice Techmician's Sigrature
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INSERT THIS END FIRST - FACE UP

- ‘ REORDER FORM LPG-FAOM DEGREE DAY SYSTEMS, INC.'CEDAR GROVE, NJ 07008 '.

TOLL FREE: 1-B00-233-4733 FAX: {973) 239-5442 e-mall: info @degreaday.com

. SOLD TO
. ADDRESS

CERTIFIED METER DELIVERY N 9 O 2 2 2 2 8

4 PREVIOUS SALE NO. ~CODE - GALLON READING - START 10ths
- . B
. Y
. YOUR SALE NO. ) o ‘G_,_ALLON‘FIFQDING-FI'NISH

FLAMMABLE COMPRESSED - TEMPERATURE COMPENSATED AT 60° F.

Heartland Gas Company

13209 Highway 17
Park River, ND 58270-9603

(701) 284-7480 -

cop. T cHARGE O DATE

- CITY ' —

"PRODUCT. |- *GALLONS+ |- -~ u* - PRICE |  AMOUNT *
L.P GAS

- [BEGIWNING %] [ ENDING % | [g2omzaon SALES

- 4 A B . TAX

- TANK NO 'I’_'bTAL_

- .THIS IS YOUR INVOICE —_—

' MECEIVED

- ABOVE GALLONS

. . CUSTOMER SIGNATURE

b RECEIVED . U casH ' ‘
PAYMENT &~ - Cl CHEGK DH.'VEH

LIQUEFIED PETROLEUM GAS
'2.1/FLAMMASLE GAS/UN 1075 (PROPANE NON- CORRDSIVE)

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR PROPANE SAFETY INFORMATION




IMPORTANT INFORMATION ON PROPANE SAFETY

YoU GET CONVENIENCES AND ENERGY COST SAVINGS WITH PROPANE . ..
That's why miliicns of hemes, tarms and businesses chposg it tar heating, water heating, motor
fuel and other uses. -
And, as & valued customer, we want you to know how 1o properly use propane. 1t's a fla, e
tuel that may explode it not properiy handled.
FOR YOUR SAFETY, PROPANE HAS AN ODOR ADDED S0 YDU CAN DETECT LEAKS.
You and euch member of your lamily must know the smetl of propane, Ask your serviceman to
demonstrate its odor. I anyone in your househeld cannot smell propane, call us immediately.
Propane is heavier than air and will collect at fleor level. Carefully smell at fioor level in low spots
o check tor propang.
WHAT TO DO IF YOU SMELL GAS OR SUSPECT A LEAK.

1. Put out all smoking materials and any ather open Hames.

2. Do not operate any appliancus, switches of thermostats.

3. Gat everyene outside and away from gas equipment.

4. Shut off the gas supply, using the shutoff valve at the tank or cylinger.

5, Call your propane supplier - use your neighbor's phone - if gas smell is in the hause.

6. Stay outside and leave the gas off until the leak has been found and fixed.

RELIGHTING YOUR PILOTS.
We strongly recommend that for safety reasons, vou call our qualified technician to relight your
pilots. However, if you reiight the pilots yoursel?:

« Tum all appliance contrals and manual shut-off valves to the “OFF™ position.

* Siowly open the tank shut-pff valve.

« Carefully smell for the presence of propane ! floor Jevet and low spote before attempting

10 relight the pilol.
* If gas is detected - 5TOP - See “What To Do ¥ You Smell Gas® ahove
~ Follow the manufacturer's instructions for oilof Highting.

valve

Ta close the valve, turn wheelhandle
clockwise $o the right. ¥ you are znabie to
close the vaive, advise your propane service
representative immediately.

YOUR PROPANE SYSTEM AND APPLIANGES RAVE BULT-IN SAFETY QC:L&»:)
FEATIRES . .. to help keep them working.

= Don't allow unqualified personnel 10 service your propang system ar appliance.
Dor't tamper with gas controls on apptiances.
Oon’t let your system run oul of propane.
Have wet or flopdes appliances and controls serviced immediately.
Undersiand that propane odor can fade or be covergd up by other strong odors.
Do not light pilot light in areas where there are Strang odors - compieiely ventiiate the
area first,
Gall & qualified technician to relight pitots or caretully follow the eguipment manutactur-
ers instrutiions.
Repeated pilet oulages could indicate a hazardous condition - Dan't attempt 1o retight
the pilot call your sarviceman.

IF YOU RUN QUY GF GAS
= Turn off all appiiance control valves Seme
+ Turn oft the propane service valve on the propane fank.
« Cafl your propane supplier ang advise him that you are “0UT OF GAS".
Your sopplier will arrange to meet you for a satety leak test inspection and propane
delivery,
» Jpn't attempt to turn the gas back on yourself. Your propane supplier must first conduct
a satety leak test before he can refili your tank. When you schedule your propane
dalivery, be sura you will be at home, so the propane suppiier can conduct a safety leak
1test, check your appliances and the gas system and then re-light your appliances to
assure that they are gperating praperly and are ieak free,
WARNING
« Flammable Gas. The installation, modification, or repair af an LPG system by a person
wha is noi licensed or registered to install, modify, or repair an LPG sysiem may cause
injury, karrn, or t0ss. Contact a person licensed or registered t: install, modify, or repair
an LPG system. A persen licensed to instadl or repair and LPG system may not be liable
for damanes caused by the modification of an LPG system by an unlicensed person
except as other wise provided by applicabie law.

a2 e
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DO NOT OPEN CONTAINER SHUT-OFF VALVE!

If this valve is tuned off for any reason, the National Fuel Gas
Code (NFPA 54 requires a leak check of the system senviced

by the coniainer at the time the gas valve is turned back on.
The leak check must be conducted by a qualified technician.

DO NOT ATTEMPT TO OPEN THE VALVE YOURSELF! Failure
to follow this waming may result in the ignition of leaking gas,
causing serious and potentially fatal injury, fire, or explosion.

© 2009 PROPANE EDUCATION & RESEARACH COUNCIL | PRC 001400
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carbon monoxide safety iniormation

Spend a few moments
for your family’s safety.
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Heartland/Gas Company |,
13209 Highway 17

Park River, ND 58270
701-284-7480

If you or a family member shows physical
symptoms of carbon monoxide poisoning, |
get everyone out of the building and
CALL 911 ORYOUR LOCAL FIRE
DEPARTMENT.

If it is safe 10 do so, open windows to aliow
entry of fresh air, and turn off any appliances
you suspect may be releasing the carbon
monoxide.

If no one has physical symptoms of carbon
monoxide poisoning, but you suspect that -
carbon monoxide is present, call your
propane retailer or a qualified service

. technician to check carbon monoxide leve!
and your propane equipment.

POLICE

\RE DEPARTMENT

PROPANE RETAILER

SERVICE TECHNICIAN




carbon monoxide saiety information

Carbon Monoxide Can Be Deadly!

&

Every year, hundreds of Americans die from
unintentional carbon monaxide poisoning
and thousands seek medical attention.
Some of these fatalitios are caused by
improper operation of appliances.

Everyone in your family is at risk if
dangerous levels of carbon monoxide
are present in your home. Unborn babies,
infants, those with medical conditions,
and the elderly are the most susceptible
to its effects. Carbon monoxide can strike
quickly... people who are sleeping can die
from carbon monexide poisoning before
ever experiencing symploms.

Please take & few minutes to read this
brochure to learn about the dangers

of carbon monoxide and simple pre-
cautions you can take to reduce the
risk of accidental poisoning. Share this
infermation with your family members to
help ensure that everycne stays safe.

&

{
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C~+<bon Monoxide Facts

WHAT 1S CARBON MONOXIDE?

Carbon monoxide is a colorless, odorless,
tasteiess, and toxic gas. Smoking a
cigaretie; running an internal combustion
engine, and burning candles, fuei all,
wood, kercseng, natural gas, and progane
may produce carbon monoxide. High levels
of carbon monoxide can be produced
when fuels are burned incompletely.

WHERE DO HIGH LEVELS OF

CARBON MONOXIDE COME FROM?
High levels of carbon manoxide can be
generated by internal combustion engines
or by appliances that are defective or
improperly installed or maintained. Carbon
monoxide can also enter a heme if an
appliance venting system or chimney
becomes blocked (for example, by a
bird’'s nest).

CARBON MONOXIDE CAN BE DEADLY!
High levels of carbon monoxide can make
you dizzy, give you headaches, or cause flu-
like symptoms (see “Poisoning Symploms”
on reverse side). In extremsa cases, high
levels of or extended exposure o carbon
monoxide can result in brain damage or
death. Young children; the elderly; people
with heart disease; and those under the
influence of aleohol, drugs, or madication
are particularly susceptible to carbon
monaxide poisoning.



Reduce the Risk of Carbon Monoxide Poisoning.

(S

@l

The best way to reduce the risk of carbon

rmonoxide poisoning is to have a qualified
service technician check your appliances
and venting systems annually, preferably

before the heating seasen begins. Other

important measures include:

» Keep chimneys, flues, and vents free of
debris such as leaves and animal nests.

» Keep chimneys, flues, and vents free of
snow and ice.

» Consider installing a UL-listed carbaon
monoxide detector on every level of
your heme.

» Never use a gas oven or range-top .
burners to provide space heating.

* Never use portable heaters indoors,
unless they are designed and approved
for indoor use.

* Never use a barbecue grill (propane or
charcoal) indoors for cogking or heating.

» Regularly check your appliance exhaust
vents for blockage.

+ Always open the chimney flue damper

when you use your fireplace.

* Always follow the manufacturer's instruc-

tions for placerment and use of vent-free

appliances, including fireplaces and logs.
Never run an internal cambustion engine
such as your car, lawn mower, generator,
or snow blower In enclosed arsas such
as your garage.

~arbon Monoxide Detectors Can
prove Safety

®

Carbon monoxide detectors are designed
to sound an alarm when they sense
excessive levels of carbon monoxide in
the air. For an exlra measure of safety, we
recommend that you consider installing

a UL-listed carbon monoxide detector on
each leve! of your home. Be sure to follow
the manufacturer's instructions regarding
installation, location, and maintenance.

Somé Signs of Improper Appliance
Operation That Can Generate High
Carbon Monoxide Levels:

* Sooting, especially on appliances,
vents, and warm air registers

+ Unfamiliar or burning odor

* Increased moisture inside of windows
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LIGHTING PILOT LIGHTS

IF A PILOT LIGHT REPEATEDLY GOES
OUT or is very difficult to light, there may
be a safety problem. DO NOT try to fix
the problem yourseif. It is strongly recom-
mended that only a QUALIFIED SERVICE
TECHNICIAN light any pilot light that has
gone out.

YOU ARE TAKING THE RISK of starting

a fire or an explosion if you light a pilot
light yourself. Carefully follow all of the
manufacturer's instructions and warnings
concerning the appliance before attempting
to light the pilot.

ey
Y

APPLIANCE MAINTENANCE

LEAVE IT TO THE EXPERTS. Only a
qualified service technician has the training
to install, inspect, service, maintain, and re-
pair your appliances. Have your appliances
and propane system inspected just before
the start of each heating season.

HELP YOUR APPLIANCES “BREATHE."
Check the vents of your appliances to be
sure that flue gases can flow easily to the
outdoors; clear away any insect or bird
nests or other debris. Also, clear the area
around your appliances so plenty of air can
reach the burner for proper combustion,

DO NOT TRY TO MODIFY OR REPAIR
valves, requlators, connectors, controls,

or other appliance and cylinder/tank parts.
Doing so creates the risk of a gas leak that
Gan result in property damage, serious injury,
or death.

HAVE OLDER APPLIANCE CONNECTORS
INSPECTED. Certain older appliance con-
nectors may crack or break, causing a gas
leak. If you have an appliance that is more
than 20 years old, have a qualified service
technician inspect the connector, Do not

do this yourself, as movement of the ap-
pliance might damage the connector and
cause z leak.

FLAMMABLE VAPORS ARE A SAFETY
»"vq HAZARD. The pilot iight on your propane
b appliance can ignite vapors from gasoline,
paint thinners, and other flammable liguids.
Be sure to store and use flammable liquids
outdoors or in an area of the building con-
taining no propane appliances.

DON'T RISK IT! If you cannot operate
any part of your propane system, or if
yau think an appliance or other device
is not working right, call your propane
retailer or a qualified service technician
for assistance.

"% RUNNING OUT OF GAS

DON'T RUN OUT OF GAS. SERIOUS
& SAFETY HAZARDS, INCLUBING FIRE

OR EXPLOSION, CAN RESULT.

* If an appliance valve ar a gas line is teft
open, a leak could occur when the system
is recharged with propane.

* If your propane tank runs out of gas, any
pilot lights on your appliances will go out.
This can be extremely dangerous.

* A LEAK CHECK IS REQUIRED. In many
states, a propane retailer or a qualified
service technician must perform a leak
check of your propane system before
turning on the gas.

POLICE: i FIRE DEPARTMENT:

Fteartliand Gas Company
13209 Highway 17
Park River, ND 58270-9603
701-284-7480

For more information, please visit:
www.lsepropane.com




IF YOU SMELL GAS

1. NO FLAMES OR SPARKS! Immediately
put out all smoking materials and other
open fiames. Do not operate lights,
appliances, telephones, or celi phones.
Flames or sparks from these sources
can trigger an explosion or & fire.

2. LEAVE THE AREA IMMEDIATELY! Get
everyone out of the building or area
where you suspect gas is leaking.

3. SHUT OFF THE GAS. Turn off the main
gas supply valve on your propane tank
if it is safe to do so. To close the valve,
turn it to the right (clockwise).

4. REPORT THE LEAK. From a neighbc )
home or other nearby building away ™
from the gas leak, call your propane
retailer right away. If you can’t reach
your propane retailer, call 911 or your
local fire department.

5. DO NOT RETURN TO THE BUILDING
OR AREA until your propane retailer
determines that it is safe to do so.

6. GET YOUR SYSTEM CHECKED.
Before you attempt to use any of your
propane appliances, your propane retailer
or a qualified service technician must
check your entire system to ensure that
it is leak-free.

! TAKE THE SNIFF TEST

Scratch and sniff the blue cif'® ,)
Have everyone in your family take
the sniff test to learn what propane
smells like.

A

CAN YOU SMELL IT?

Propane smelis like rotten eggs, a skunk’s
spray, or a dead animal. Some people may
have difficulty smelling propane due to their
age (older people may have a less sensitive
sense of smell); a medical condition; or the
effects of medication, alcohol, tobacco, or
drugs. Consider purchasing a propane gas
detector as an additional measure of security.

ODOR FADE is an unintended reduction in
the concentration of the odor of propane,
mabking it more difficult to smell. Although
rare, several situations can cause odor fade:

* The presence of air, water, or rustin a
propane tank or cylinder

+ The passage of leaking propane through
the soil

Since there is a possibility of odor fade

or problems with your sense of smell, you
should respond immediately to even a
faint odor of gas.

PROPANE GAS DETECTORS

Propane gas detectors sound an alarm if they
sense propane in the air. They can provide an
additional measure of security in homes with

little-used areas or with occupants who have

difficulty smelling propane.

GUIDELINES regarding propane gas
detectors:

= Buy only units that are listed by Underwriters
Laboratories {UL)}.

* Follow the manufacturer's instructions
regarding installation and maintenance.

* Never ignore the smell of propane, even
if no detector is sounding an alarm.
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CARBON MONOXIDE
AND YOUR SAFETY

WHAT IS CARBON MONOXIDE (CO)?
You can't taste or smell CO, but it is a very
dangerous gas, produced when any fuel
burns. High levels of CO can come from
appliances that are not operating correctly,
or from a venting system or chimney that
becomes blocked.

CO CAN BE DEADLY! High leveis of CO
can make you dizzy or sick {see below}. In
extreme cases, CO can cause brain damage
or death.

« Headache
¢ Dizziness * Nausea
« Fatigue

IF YOU SUSPECT CO IS PRESENT,
ACT IMMEDIATELY!

1. If you or a family member shows
physical symptoms of CO poisoning,
get everyone out of the building and

call 911 or your local fire department.

2. If it is safe to do sc, open windows
to allow entry of fresh air, and turn
off any appliances you suspect may
be releasing CO.

3. i no one has symptoms, but you
suspect that CO is present, call
your propane retailer or a qualified
service technician to check CO
levels and your propane equipment.

TO HELP REDUCE THE RISK OF
CO POISONING:

+ Have a qualified service technician check

your propane appliances and related

vernting systems annually, preferably be-

fore the heating season begins.

« Install UL-listed CO detectors on every
level of your home.

* Never use a gas oven or range-top
burners to provide space heating.

-

Never use portable heaters indoors
unless they are designed and approved
for indoor use.

« Never use a barbecue grill (propane or

charcoal) indoors for cooking or heating.

Regularly check your appliance exhaust
vents for blockage.

SIGNS OF IMPROPER APPLIANCE
OPERATION THAT CAN GENERATE
HIGH CO LEVELS:

* 3ooting, especially on appliances
and vents

+ Unfamiliar or burning odor
¢ Increased moisture inside of windows

WHAT IS PROPANE?

Propane {aiso called LPG—liquefied
petroleum gas—or LP gas) is a liquid
fuel stored under pressure. In most
systems, propane is vaporized tc a
gas before it leaves the tank. Propane
is flammable when mixed with air
{oxygen) and can be ignited by many
sources, including open flames, smok-
ing materials, electrical sparks, and
static electricity. Severe “freeze burn”
or frostbite can result if propane liguid
comes in contact with your skin.
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North Dakota Propane Gas Association
1025 North 3rd Street » PO Box 1956

Bismarck, ND 58502 « www.ndpropune.org
701-223-3370 Fax 701-223-5004
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Testimony HB 1419
March 15, 2011 —Senate IBL

Chairman Klein and members of the Committee:

For the record, my name is Mike Rud. I'm the Executive Director of the North Dakota
Propane Gas Association. NDPGA represents over 100 propane retailers and another 100
propane equipment vendors from across the state and Upper Midwest. On behalf of our

. association, I'm here urging you to recommend a “DO PASS” on HB 1419,

The idea of being guilty until proven innocent doesn't really have much of a ring to it
when you live in this great nation and state we call home. However, for years now, this is
the spot many propane marketers have found themselves in when a mishap involving the
product they sell and service occurs. A “DO PASS” recommendation on HB 1419 will go a
long way towards changing this scenario by doing away with uncalled for lawsuits and court

cases that needlessly cost our state’'s propane dealers time and money.



North Dakota Propane Gas Association
1025 North 3rd Street » PO Box 1956

Bismarck, ND 58502 ¢« www.ndpropane.org
701-223-3370 Fax 701-223-5004

HB 1419 is a very simple bill._ HB 1419 has several goals:

« |t takes the propane marketer out of a lawsuit if the propane system was modified
without his knowledge and the direct cause of the loss and/or damages is the
modification or alteration.

e The bill does not require consumers to notify the propane dealer when modifications or
repairs are made.

= Farmers and home improvement enthusiasts can still do what they wish if they feel
capable of their skills. The bill does not prevent that, it simply says the dealer is not
liable if the meodifications cause problems.

Seventeen other states currently have limited liability laws protecting propane
dealers. As former state representative Francis Wald, who appeared in front of Senate IBL
committees many times on behalf of business was so fond of saying, “If they weren't
responsible for breaking it, they shouldn’t have to pay to fix it.” That sentiment sums up the
purpose of HB 1419,

Again, NDPGA members urge a “DO PASS” on HB 1419.

Thank you for your time and consideration.
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. Testimony on HB 1419

Chairman Klein and members of the committee. My name is Ken Astrup.
| currently serve as General Manager of Dakota Plains Cooperative,
headquartered in Valley City. | appear here today, in support of HB 1419.

Our cooperative does a large volume of business in propane. We have
an excellent safety record. We have a policy that says we will not take on
any new propane customers, unless we are allowed to do an inspection
of the propane installation, including the line and hook ups in the house or
building. If we are denied the opportunity to do the inspection, we refuse
to provide service.

We have employees that are well trained to do the installation of a new
propane tank and line. Once the installation has been completed, we
annually send out a letter to the customer, reminding them of the dangers

of propane and what they should do if they smell propane or suspect they
. have a leak.

We regularly do the inspection and replacement of regulators as the law
requires.

We can do everything possible to ensure the installation was done
correctly and everything is functioning properly.

Yet the property owner can make changes to the system, inside the
building and unless they notify us, we have no idea they have altered the
properly installed system.

As suppliers, we continue to fill the tank, check the line to the building, &
replace regulators. Doing everything the law requires to make sure the
installation remains safe.

. Yet, unknown to us, the owner has made changes to the system, that are



unsafe and can cause a fire or explosion. And when it does occur, we, as
suppliers are told the accident was our fault.

In North Dakota, we have been fortunate that there have not been a lot of
propane explosions. Even one is too many. | think this good record is
due to the care and expertise of propane suppliers and installers in our
state.

People say, the potential of an explosion or a problem is why we carry
insurance. Yes, itis, but ultimatetly, it is the customer that has to pay that
increased insurance cost.

With this bill, we are asking that the consumer that made the un-approved
changes to the system and failed to notify the supplier of those changes,
so we have the chance to correct them, be held liable for their actions.

| urge you to support HB 1419.

Ken Astrup, General Manager
Dakota Plains Cooperative
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. Testimony for HB 1419 — ND Senate IBL Committee

Chairman Klein and members of the Senate Industry, Business, and Labor
Committee for the record my name is Steve Becher and | am Executive Director of
the Professional Insurance Agents of ND. PIA of ND represents over 300 main
street insurance agencies with well over 1,000 agents across the state of North
Dakota. | am here representing our association lending support and asking for a
“Do Pass” recommendation on House Bill 1419.

LPG dealers are put in a difficult position in that they are delivering a highly
volatile product that requires a complete understanding of the safety features of
the equipment used to store and disperse the product. Once they leave the
installation or delivery site these dealers have no control over modifications or
repairs to the system made by the customer or a third party that can lead to a
, loss. When there is a claim, the LPG dealer is immediately pulled in even when

. the loss is caused by modifications or repairs that were not completed by the
dealer and of which they had no knowledge.

The opponents of this bill will say that it will be worked out by the courts system
which is true, but the LPG dealer will still incur significant costs with the time and
effort required to defend such a lawsuit. The LPG dealer’s insurance company will
also incur costs sometimes into the tens of thousands of dollars in the defense of
these claims even when it is obvious that the loss was caused by the actions of
others. These costs are then passed on to the dealers through the insurance
premiums that they pay and eventually to the consumer through the price of
propane.

| recently spoke with a ND insurance company that is one of the main writers of
LPG insurance and asked them about availability of coverage in the market as weil
as premiums compared to other flammable products. | was told that there are
only 4 companies that are active in writing LPG accounts due to the volatility of
. the product and the severity of claims. Most companies also have strict
underwriting guidelines on whether or not they will write an LPG dealer such as



PIAND Testimony — HB 1419 (page 2)

limited number of gallons sold, certain percentage of LPG sales in relation to
other products, and many loss control inspection requirements for the dealer. The
insurance companies, however, have no way to inspect any modifications or
repairs made by the customer or third party and are made to incur defense costs
for the LPG dealer when these iosses occur. According to the insurance company
underwriter that | spoke to, all of these factors together make the product liability
premiums for an LPG dealer about 10 times the premiums for other flammable
liquid dealers such as gas or fuel oil.

HB 1419 does Eﬁfﬁ grant immunity to the LPG dealer just because an alteration
or repair was made nor does it make the dealer immune for anything that
happens inside the home, it only grants immunity if the dealer is unaware of the
alteration and that alteration is the direct cause of the loss. HB 1419 also does
ﬁi@‘i change any of the duty owed by the LPG dealer to its customers such as
educating them on safety issues with propane, periodic inspections of the system,
or correcting issues with regulators and piping that becomes outdated. The
problem without this bill is that the LPG dealer can do all of these things to
protect their customer and still incur thousands of dollars in costs and his
insurance company can incur tens of thousands of dollars in defense costs when a
customer chooses to ignore the advice and modifies or repairs the system on his
own incorrectly and a loss occurs because of this modification.

LPG dealers have enough risk in their businesses with the volatility of the
product they sell, the strict certification training they provide for their empioyees,
and the safety measures they employ to protect their customers without the
added risk of incurring costs for losses that are totally beyond their control. In the
interest of fairness, | would encourage a “Do Pass” recommendation on HB 1419.



TESTIMONY ON HB 1419
SENATE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR COMMITTEE
March 15, 2011
Presented by Christopher Friez, on behalf of the
North Dakota Grain Dealers Association

Good afternoon Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee. My name is
Christopher Friez from the Crowley Fleck law firm and I'm here on behalf of
the North Dakota Grain Dealers Association,

The North Dakota Grain Dealers association is in support of HB 1419,

The Grain Dealers feel that it is common sense that an innocent supplier of a

legal product should not be held liable for the negligent acts of another after the
product is sold.

We're told by an agent who writes coverage on many ND grain elevators that
some insurance carriers automatically charge an extra $5000 premium for a
business handling LP gas, and that there is a $25,000 LP deductible for bodily
injury or property damage. These costs and liabilities discourage businesses
from even handling the product for their customers. We’re not saying HB 1419
will eliminate all of that, but it would decrease exposure for the carrier and that
can only help with the premium and deductible challenges.

On the back side of this testimony is a Resolution adopted by the North Dakota
Grain Dealers Association at their convention held on January 18, 2011 in
Fargo. In sum, the resolution provides that the Grain Dealers Association
supports legislation, such as HB 1419, because it is unreasonable to hold an LP
gas dealer responsible when the dealer has no control over the modification and
repair to equipment, which is done without the dealer’s knowledge and consent,
after LP gas equipment leaves the dealer and is in the hands of the user,

The North Dakota Grain Dealers Association stands in support of HB 1419 and
urges a Do Pass.

Thank you.

(%)



. HOW THE AMENDED HB 1419 WOULD READ:

1) Any person engaged in this state in the business of selling at retail, supplying,
handling, or transporting liquefied petroleum gas is immune from civil liability if
the direct cause of any loss, damage or injury was caused by the alteration,
modification, or repair of liquefied petroleum gas equipment or a liquefied
petroleum gas appliance if the alteration, modification, or repair was done by the
person claiming to be injured and was done without the knowledge and consent
of the liquefied petroleum gas seller, supplier, handler or transporter or was
completed by a person not certified to repair the equipment or appliance.

2) This section applies only to fixed liquefied petroleum gas fuel systems. “fixed
liquefied petroleum gas fuel systems’ means an installation with a maximum
operating pressure of one hundred twenty-five pounds per square inch [56.70
kilograms per 6.45 square centimeters] or less and includes the container
assembly, pressure regulator, piping system, gas utilization equipment and
components, and venting system in residential, commercial or institutional
installations.

3) For the immunity protections of this section to apply, the person seeking the
immunity protections has the responsibility of:

a) Informing all current owners and each subsequent owner of fixed liguefied
petroleum gas fue! systems of the requirements of this section and
obtaining such owner's written acknowledgement of the reguirements of

. this section,

b) Performing an examination of the liquefied petroleum gas equipment and
appliances for all owners of fixed liquefied petroleum gas fuel systems,
annually and upon change of ownership, unless such examination is
refused by the owner,

¢) Responding to any owner's requests for inspection and consent to any
alteration. modification, or repair of liquefied petroleum gas equipment or a
liquefied petroleum gas appliance within 24 hours of such request, and

d) Maintaining, personally or through an employee, certification to install or
repair liquefied petroleum gas equipment and appliances such that
customers have a certified person available for installation or repair of
such equipment or appliances.




. L Is this bill necessary? NDAJ would ask this committee to first consider the need for
is bill:

1) Is there a need to create immunity for LP dealers?
Not one person / dealer who testified on the bill in front of the house actually cited one

case or one instance in which they had actually been sued in this State for the events they
are seeking immunity from.

If there is no actual litigation, what is the need for this immunity?

2) The current laws in ND allow persons to bring claims against the LP dealers if they can
prove their case.

The person / atiorney bringing the claim must prove that:

a) The LP dealer owed them a duty;

b} The LP dealer breached that duty:

c) The LP dealer’s breach of that duty was a proximate cause of damages,
and

d) That the suffered damages.

. If the party bringing the claim fails to prove thus, then there is no recovery.

The LP dealer also has other defenses already built into NID’s legal system. These
include:

a) Assumption of Risk
b) Comparative Fault

3) Is there justification for allowing LP dealers to be immune when other businesses are
responsible for their actions?

4) Virtually everybody who makes arguments that immunity provisions to laws should
apply cite the fact that there was some unjust case somewhere and/or that we have a runaway
jury system which needs to be corrected.

A) The fact is that ND does not have a runaway jury system.
B) Ask the LP dealers:

When is the last time a ND jury gave an unjust award against an LP dealer
because of some alteration to the LP system which is the reason you are
seeking immunity?

I believe the LP dealer will not be able to point out a single case.



. 1L If there is a need for this bill, then NDAJ would ask this committee to consider

amendments to the bill to address flaws within the blanket immunity provisions.

1) This current bill is entirely unjust as it relates to innocent, subsequent purchasers of
homes / businesses. It provides immunity even if the home / business owner did not actually
make the alteration / repair.

A. Amendment in subsection (1): This modification allows the immunity to
apply towards any person who actually made the alteration, repair, etc. without the
knowledge and consent of the LP gas dealer. Innocent third parties, including
subsequent owners of the property, who had no knowledge of the alteration or
repair, would not be limited by the immunity provisions but would still have the
same legal obligation which currently exists under ND law to prove that the LP gas
dealer was negligent.

2) The current bill provides no reasonable limitation on the immunity provisions. This is
sought to be addressed in the addition of subsection (3).

A. Since the LP dealers are pushing this bill, there should be a requirement that they
notify their current customers. This can occur via the course of the next fill up on LP Gas, a
general mailing, etc. Customers should be aware that they need to get written acknowledgement
for changes, etc. This is the reason for adding (3)(a), which states as follows:

3) For the immunity protections of this section to apply, the person seeking the immunity
protections has the responsibility of:

a) Informing all current owners and each subsequent owner of fixed liguefied
petroleum aas fuel systems of the requirements of this section and obtaining such
owner's written acknowledgement of the requirements of this section,

B. Immunity should not apply if the LP dealers have no responsibility to actually
check the systems. We are dealing with dangerous products here. In order for LP dealers to be
able to assert immunity because there was a change to an LP appliance, etc. that they did not
approve of, there should be the obligation to make an annual inspection of the property and/or an
inspection upon change of ownership. Certainly, there are subsequent owners who will not know
if their LP fed Stover or Dryer is hooked up properly or not and / or there are owners who have
Sears representatives or who personally hook up LP appliances, etc. and don’t have certification,
etc. As such, annual inspections should be an option to allow customers to make sure their
system is properly hooked up and maintained. This is the reason for adding (3)(b). Note: This
was raised as an option by house committee members but was never implemented. Part of the
concern of the LP dealers was addressing the circumstance where the LP dealer was not

permitted into the home. This section also addresses that concern. This is the reason for adding
(3)(b), which states as follows:

3) For the immunity protections of this section to apply, the person seeking the immunity
rotections has the responsibility of:




b} Performing an examination of the liquefied petroleum gas equipment and
appliances for all owners of fixed liguefied petroleum gas fuel systems, annuaily
and upon change of ownership, unless such examination is refused by the owner,

C. Under the current bill, if the customer makes a repair “without the knowledge and
consent” of the LP dealer, then immunity applies. This begs the question as to what happens
when the customer asks the LP dealer to acknowledge and consent to the change in the LP
system (i.e. a new dryer, furnace, stove, elc. being hooked up). When does the LP dealer have to
inspect the system and give their consent? This provides that the LP dealer must get out to the
customner and perform an inspection and provide a repair within 24 hours of notice. Considering
that this applies to things like home furnaces being changed out in the middle of a ND winter,
grain dryers which are needed for harvest, cooking appliances, etc. 24 hours is a reasonable time
frame. This is the reason for adding (3)(¢), which states as follows:

3) For the immunity protections of this section to apply, the person seeking the immunity
protections has the responsibility of:

c) Responding to any owner’s requests for inspection and consent to any alteration,

modification, or repair of liquefied petroleum gas equipment or a liguefied
petroleum gas appliance within 24 hours of such reguest,

D. Under the current bill, the LP dealers have immunity if a “person not certified to
repair the equipment or appliance™ came into the home to make the repair, etc. To NDAJ’s
knowledge there is no legal standard in ND which has been implemented to establish who is or 1s
not “certified”. The problem is that if the Sears repairman, etc. brings out a new propane stove,
is he certified or not? The customer should be able to contact somebody (i.e. the LP dealer who
will be asserting they are immune because the appliance was not hooked up right) to get a
certified person into their home to install the appliance, make the repair, etc. This is the reason
for adding (3)(d), which states as follows:

3) For the immunity protections of this section to apply. the person seeking the immunity
protections has the responsibility of:

d) Maintaining, personally or through an employee, certification to install or repair
liquefied petroleum gas equipment and appliances such that customers have a
certified person available for installation or repair of such equipment or

appliances.

As a final note, NDAJ would ask this committee to consider an amendment requiring that ANY
person who is in the business of installing or repairing LP equipment or appliances MUST be
certified to do the same. Also, there should be specific language on what is required for a
certification. It would be a significant financial burden upon customers if Sears was going to
install the appliance for free or minima! cost (which is typical) but then the customer is required
to hire some separate person to hook up the appliance to ensure certification.



HeartiandGas Company
13209 Highwayl7
Park River, ND 58270-9603
Phone 701-284-7480 Fax 701-284-7492
Email: heartlandgas@polarcomm.com

Jim Chyle, Owner of Heartland Gas Company, Park River, North Dakota
In business for 24 years

With this legislation the propane company is not responsible for anything
inside the home.

So who is responsible? The furnace man, the plumber for installing the
water heater, the department store for selling the gas range and gas clothes
dryer?

No, these people all deal in the individual parts of the gas system and have
very little knowledge of gas code and in many instances haven’t even read
the installation manual.

Who is the expert for the complete gas system? It should be the gas
supplier-if he has time to do it. For many companies, when winter is over the
propane man is hauling fertilizer, diesel fuel or is in the tire shop. Propane
should be a full time position.

The gas supplier is trained to not only deliver propane but also trained to:

o Inspect the gas system in the home (make sure the system
is save and efficient)

o Perform a GAS check (the industry standard evaluation)

o Take pictures of entire gas system

¢ Instruct and educate the homeowner on the safety of the
gas system in their home and if any changes are made the
gas company must be notified

» Continually have a relationship with the customer via
safety brochures, decals, newsletters, gas bills, websites,
etc. All of these forms of safety media contain

(&)



information on the importance of having a trained
professional for all service and modifications to the gas
system.

e Company must establish what they feel is a reasonable
amount of time to repeat inspections -my company is
comfortable with 5 years

and

e Most importantly, the propane supplier has the ability to
interrupt the gas supply when the system is not in
compliance with current gas codes and safety standards

Propane can be a dangerous product, but if the suppliers take responsibility
for their work and make sure the system is safe there is no reason for this
piece of legislation. We will never eliminate all lawsuits, nor should we.
We can hope that Attorneys, Insurance Companies, Judges and Juries are all
made up of reasonable people; if a propane company is liable they should be
sued.

When the Propane Gas Association was asked for examples of lawsuits in

North Dakota, they could not come up with any. If this is not a problem,
why are we here?

If this bill passes, the safety of the customer will be left in the hands of the
plumber, heating contractor or appliance repairman. In most instances, these

people have very little knowledge of the complete gas system.

If you have one fire, or one loss of life is this bill worth it? Gas inspections
must not be allowed to stop.

This bill protects approximately 100 propane companies in the State of
North Dakota.

Who is protecting the 640,000 residents?

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 701-331-1284.
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(1)

ike Rud 8/2:/1"!

: CO-Kindred, Dale Beck <Dale Beck@chsinc.com>
at: Monday, March 21, 2011 12:25 PM

To: Mike Rud
Subject: Info

Please forward this to the appropriate list of Senators for me. Thank you

Dale Beck, Energy Dept. Mgr.
Dakota Ag Cooperative

5324 165th Ave SE

Kindred, ND 58051

Ph. 701-428-3134
1-800-427-3134

Cell 701-361-2031

Fax 701-428-3137

Good Morning Dale!

Based upon the data that 1 was able to pull back to CHS’ fiscal year 1999 (9/1/1998 and forward), we have had 49

claimants for a total of $11.6 million paid out in propane claims. That averages just over $237,000 per claimant. | cant
pecific details on fault nor whether the claim went to court or was settled out of court. The highest paid out in that

‘ame was just under $3.5 million to one claimant and the lowest paid out was $26.00, so there is a wide range.

As far as a specific case to reference, | would suggest that you provide the Tara Groenewald v. Propane Continental
Case, which was an accident where an appliance was removed from a building and the line left uncapped and open upon
a tenant change. The new tenants moved into the place, and turned the gas on. As you can imagine, gas escaped from
the open line and found an ignition source which severely injured a young girl in an explosion. in that claim, the retailer
paid $2 million, the wholesaler paid $15 million and some upstream suppliers paid $20K-$50K each for a claim that was
caused by something unknown to the retailer, wholesaler, etc.

Let me know if that information is helpful.

Have a great week,

Bryan Lewis
Manager-Propane RIsk Management
CHS Propane

LHY

5500 Cenex Drive | Inver Grove Heights, MN 55077
P 651-355-8425 | F 651-355-8499 | C 612-793-5480
bryan, lewjs@chsinc.com | Vislt us at www.chsinc.com

This e-mail contains confidential information for the sole use of the intended recipient. If you have received
this communication in error, please contact the sender immediately. Any distribution, copying or disclosure is

.‘ﬂy prohibited.

This outbound email has been scanned for all viruses by the Messagelabs Skyscan service.




PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1419

Page 1, line 12, after “repair was done” add "by the person claiming to be injured and

was done”

Page 1

Add new subsection 3.

3)

For the immunity protections of this section to apply, the person seeking the

immunity protections has the responsibility of:

a)

b)

d)

Informing all current owners and each subsequent owner of fixed liquefied
petroleum gas fuel systems of the requirements of this section and
obtaining such owner's written acknowledgement of the requirements of
this section,

Performing an examination of the liquefied petroleum gas equipment and
appliances for all_owners of fixed liquefied petroleum gas fuel systems,
annually and upon change of ownership. unless such examination is
refused by the owner,

Responding to any owner's requests for inspection and consent to any
alteration, modification, or repair of liquefied petroleum gas equipment or a
liquefied petroleum gas appliance within 24 hours of such reguest, and
Maintaining, personally or through an employee, certification to install or
repair liquefied petroleum gas equipment and appliances such that
customers have a certified person available for installation or repair of
such equipment or appliances.

Renumber accordingly



